TORBAY COUNCIL

Torbay Standing Advisory Council on Religious Education (SACRE)
Meeting Agenda

Thursday, 8 February 2024 at 9.30 am
to be held in Goodrington Room/Hybrid

Membership
Y Alnassar . .
. Corrinne Guntrip
Bill Becher . .
. . Sivita Harrison
Claire Bird o
o Maia Miller
Nikki Boone )
) ) Kim Moore-Cullen
Councillor Martin Brook
Ed Pawson
Helen Brown Jeremy Roberts
Katy Burns y

Lisa Robillard-Webb
Angela Sumner
Laura Twamley
Belinda Twiggs

Councillor Ras Virdee

Councillor Nick Bye
Charlotte Caluori
Jonathan Doney
Councillor Margaret Douglas-Dunbar

Lé?g?; yG-Z\]:/)QFI? > Rachael Williams OLD

1. Apologies for Absence
2, Minutes (Pages 3 - 6)
3. Items Requiring Urgent Attention
4. Torbay SACRE: membership updates
5. Standards: GCSE data, schools monitoring and Ofsted (Pages 7 - 10)

reports (report)
6. Devon and Torbay agreed syllabus review (report) (Pages 11 - 12)
7. Learn Teach Lead RE: updates (report) (Pages 13 - 14)
8. Regional and National Developments: RE Hubs, National

Content Standard in RE, Ofsted, Religion and Worldviews

For information relating to this meeting or to request a copy in another format or
language please contact:

4

(1)



10.

1.

12.

frameworks

Torbay SACRE Annual Report (report)
Holocaust Memorial Day: feedback for 2024
SACRE training

Future meetings: Thurs 13th June 2024

(Pages 15 - 22)



Agenda ltem 2
TORBAY COUNCIL

Torbay SACRE
Minutes of Meeting
Wednesday 18t October 2023

Hybrid meeting - 9.30am

Present: Maia Miller, Sheila Gewolb, Katy Burns, Ed Pawson, Lisa Robillard Webb,
Clir Nick Bye, Angela Sumner, Lyndsay Eley, Martin Brook, Margaret Douglas-
Dunbar, Belinda Twiggs, Laura Twamley, CllIr Virdee, Jonathan Downey

Apologies for Absence
Corrine Guntrip

Nikki Boone

Rachael Williams
Charlotte Caluori

The Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting and introductions followed.

Minutes
Minutes of last meeting were agreed to be an accurate record.

Items Requiring Urgent Attention
N/A
Torbay SACRE: membership updates

N/A

Standards: monitoring and Ofsted reports

One particular secondary school invited Ed to visit and look at their RE, this had
previously fallen out of their curriculum but it has since been re-prioritised and the
school now have a GCSE for the subject. However they are only teaching 1 hour
every fortnight and their Lead for RE is their Head of History. Ed has written a
detailed report for the school to consider taking actions to remedy the specific issues
identified.

There was general discussion, instigated by Cllr Bye, about attendance and
attainment in schools which led to the group explaining that RE can have a real
impact on student’s personal development. The focus needs to be around how to
encourage children, and parents, back into school via RE by setting an engaging and
welcoming syllabus but also ensuring that schools follow this syllabus.

Page 3



TORBAY COUNCIL

Devon and Torbay SACRE: agreed syllabus review

New syllabus for 2024 but this will take time to embed.

Laura explained that terminology is key to understanding, sometimes there can be
too much learning content to choose from.

Katy advised that sometimes the teachers don’t have a strong subject knowledge
e.g. when discussing world views and viewpoints from different cultures and
communities.

Lisa stressed the importance of validating children's views.

Ed explained that the syllabus does come at a cost and would need to be signed off
by the Local Authority (approx. £50 per school). Torbay SACRE are in agreement
for Ed to approach the LA to underwrite the syllabus.

Learn Teach Lead RE: updates

Information shared regarding the Learn Teach Lead event on 02/11/2023. A good
opportunity for sharing of information and knowledge between teachers, and a strong
networking event.

Regional and National Developments: RE Hubs, National Content Standard in
RE

It was noted that schools are not always following the statutory standards of RE
teaching, particularly as a lot of settings have transitioned to Academies which frees
them from Local Authority guidelines. However, the RE Council are implementing a
clear benchmark for national content and beginning to get traction on this.

Jonathan noted that the development of a clear benchmark and a national standard
might not solve the problem that many think RE is optional, as well as the pressure
having a national standard might bring to teachers who don’t necessarily have the
broad subject knowledge.

OFSTED are also a key part in this but they often say that they don’t have the tools
to judge the quality of RE in schools which in turn means they can’t comment on any
national benchmark statement.

Diversity NASACRE membership

Page 4



10.

11.

12.

13.

TORBAY COUNCIL

RE Quality Mark

Holocaust Memorial Day: planning for 2024

Theme around Fragility of Freedom.

Discussion also turned to the current difficulties and conflicts in Israel and how best
to support our schools, it was agreed that Rachael Williams would be consulted on
how best to share advice on the matter.

Sheila was able to update that schools in the larger cities are now being advised not
to close and all schools are being contacted via the SACRE forums, encouraging
them to reach out for support where required. There is a useful resource on the

Department for Education Against Hate website which talks about finding solutions
rather than taking sides.

SACRE training

Future Meetings

Thursday 8 February 2024 — 9.30 to 12.00
Thursday 6 June 2024 — 9.30 to 12.00

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 5

SACR

\ Y

Title: Ofsted monitoring

This report relates to the monitoring of Ofsted reports for Devon schools

To: Torbay SACRE On: 08/02/24
Contact Officer: Ed Pawson

Telephone: 07895175852

‘B E.mail: efpawson@gmail.com
1. Key points and Summary

1.1  The purpose of this report is to update SACRE members on the findings published
in recent Ofsted reports, particularly where comments relate to Religious
Education (RE), collective worship or Spiritual, Moral, Social and Cultural
development (SMSC) of pupils. Where appropriate, the report may recommend
that SACRE officers should contact specified schools to either congratulate them
on their outstanding practice, or to offer curriculum support in specified areas.

1.2 Ofsted reports from several schools make reference to issues relating to
RE/CW/SMSC. Most of these comments are very encouraging.

1.3  Brixham College has been contacted to understand more about the statement in
its recent Ofsted report, saying that it has allocated more time to study different
religions. This school was visited in June 2022 by the SACRE adviser to advise
that more time was required for the meaningful study of religion and worldviews.

Jeremy Roberts
Chair of SACRE

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



6 obed

Ofsted reports October 2023 -Jan 2024
Torbay schools
This report shows the comments which have been made in Ofsted reports in areas that relate to the work of SACRE.

Primary School | Date Comments relevant to SACRE monitoring Comments
School grading
Barton Hill | Good 09/11/23 Pupils experience a range of cultures through the curriculum, trips and visitors.
Warberry Good 25/01/24 Pupils take on positions of responsibility. For example, they can become ethos
ambassadors, who plan assemblies and help resolve issues on the playground.
It helps pupils to understand the world in which they live. For example, there has
been a focus on teaching fundamental British values and the protected
characteristics. Pupils understand the importance of equality, respect and
tolerance.
Curledge Good 30/01/24
Street
Secondary | Grading | Date Comments relevant to SACRE monitoring Comments
School
Brixham RI 27/11/23 | For example, there has been a recent increase in the time pupils have to study School contacted to
different religions. find out more .
TGGS 0/S 18/12/23 7

T xipuaddy
G wal| epuaby



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 6

rORBAY
Title: Agreed Syllabus Review

This report relates to the review of the Devon and Torbay Agreed Syllabus for RE, due to be implemented
in 2024

To: Torbay SACRE On: 08/02/24
Contact Officer: Ed Pawson
Telephone: 07895175852
“B E.mail: efpawson@gmail.com
1. Key points and Summary

1.1 The purpose of this report is to update SACRE members on the progress of the review of
the Devon and Torbay Agreed Syllabus.

1.2 The new syllabus will be completed by the end of March, ready for the launch in the
summer term.

1.3 The new syllabus will be introduced for teaching from Sept 2024

1.4 Syllabus launch events are planned to take place across Devon and Plymouth on Mon
17th, Tues 18th, Wed 19th June 2024, led by syllabus-writers Fiona Moss and Stephen
Pett (RE Today). Further launch events may be planned for schools in Torbay in the
Autumn of 2024.

1.5 The cost of the new syllabus will be £35 per school. SACRE has the assurance from the
Local Authority that it will pay for a copy of the syllabus to go to every school in Torbay
(including academies). It is expected that a significant proportion of this cost will be
recouped through the ‘paid-for’ launch events.

1.6 There will need to be ongoing training for teachers as a follow-up to the introduction of
this new syllabus, partly via the LTLRE conference and hub meetings.

Jeremy Roberts
Chair of SACRE

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 7

SAC
TORBAY
Title: Learn, Teach, Lead RE (LTLRE) report

This report relates to the SACRE supported initiative now in its twelfth year, which seeks to
support RE through local hubs.

To: Torbay SACRE On: 08/02/24
Contact Officer: Ed Pawson

Telephone: 07895175852

‘B E.mail: efpawson@gmail.com
1. Key points and Summary

1.1  The purpose of this report is to update SACRE members on the progress of the
Learn, Teach, Lead RE (LTLRE) hub network.

1.2  The next annual conference 2024 will take place on 11" October 2024, at the St
Mellion Conference Centre.

1.3 Hub leaders training will be taking place on 15t March and 5™ July 2024.

1.4 The Torbay and South Devon hub continues to be successful, with termly
meetings attracting both primary and secondary teachers of RE. The new SWIFT
hub continues to be very successful.

1.5 We have recently said goodbye to Vicky Hunt, one of our long-standing hub leads

for the Torbay and South Devon Hub. SACRE would like to thank Vicky for her
long and dedicated service.

Jeremy Roberts
Chair of SACRE

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 9

Torbay SACRE Annual Report 2022/3

Forward

Introduction from the Chair of SACRE

As ever, | am grateful to members of SACRE for their attendance at, and contribution to
meetings. We have continued to hold ‘hybrid‘ meetings, allowing for members to attend
through an internet platform if they are unable to attend in person. This has ensured that
attendance has continued to be good.

During this year we have embarked upon the process to review our Agreed Syllabus. This
has been undertaken in partnership with Devon and Plymouth SACREs and once again with
the support of RE Today. Feedback from teachers gave a very clear sense of direction to the
review with the emphasis on revising in line with national developments, rather than any
substantial re-writing. As | write this report the revision is underway and launch events for
the syllabus are being planned for June 2024.

Leadership and support for a high-quality education in religion and worldviews, and for
collective worship, remains at the heart of what we seek to do. Torbay SACRE continues to
be a proud supporter of the work of Learn Teach Lead RE through local hubs.

| would like to record my thanks and the thanks of SACRE to Ed Pawson for his outstanding
work as our professional officer. So much of what we do is dependent on him. His local
knowledge, his breadth of understanding and his national profile in the subject is so
important.

Jeremy Roberts (SACRE Chair)

Table of contents

1 Introduction

2. SACRE’s statutory responsibilities

3 Collective Worship

4 Links with other bodies

5 SACRE local involvement

6 SACRE: regional and national involvement
7 SACRE organisation

8 Appendices

1 Introduction

Membership

During the year we were pleased to welcome new members: Clir Margaret Douglas-Dunbar,
Cllir Martin Brook, Clir Nick Bye, ClIr Ras Virdee, Jonathan Doney, Lyndsay Eley, Corrine
Guntrip, Kim Moore-Cullen and Laura Twamley.

Many thanks to Philip Mantell, who has stepped down after many long and faithful years of
service to Torbay SACRE. Thanks also to a number of valued councillor members who have
stepped away from SACRE: Mandy Darling, Cordelia Law, Di Stubley, Cecilia Brown, Hazel
Foster and Nicole Amil. We have hugely valued the input from you over recent years.

Details of Torbay SACRE meetings

October 2022: 13 attendees, plus clerk and adviser, hybrid meeting
February 2023: 12 attendees, plus clerk, hybrid meeting

Page 15



June 2023: 11 attendees, plus clerk and adviser, hybrid meeting

2 SACRE’s statutory responsibilities

Review of the Local Agreed Syllabus

Work has been ongoing to review the current Agreed Syllabus for RE (AS), which runs from

2019-2024.

During the year an Agreed Syllabus Conference (ASC) was set up to advise SACRE in how to

proceed with the AS review. The ASC fed back to the full meetings with its findings. The ASC

considered whether the introduction of a new syllabus should be delayed beyond 2024,

given the expected publication of new exemplar frameworks on a worldviews approach in

2024. However, it was agreed that a new, updated syllabus is needed in 2024 to ensure that

schools continue to see the SACRE syllabus as the most fit-for-purpose way to teach high

quality RE.

This review is taking place in conjunction with Devon, Plymouth and Cornwall SACREs,

(although Cornwall’s AS runs until 2025). Teacher panels and online surveys have been

utilsed to gain feedback on the way the current syllabus is working, and to gather views on

what needs changing or updating. Evidence shows that the current syllabus, which marked a

significant change from the last one, has been well received by teachers and schools. This

means the new syllabus will not look radically different from the current model. However,

there is a need for it to embody the significant changes in approach to the subject and new

ideas being introduced at a national level, in particular around a developing understanding

about a religion and worldviews approach.

RE Today have been working on this update and will be presenting a draft version in

Autumn 2023.

SACRE wants the LA to be aware that additional resources will be required for the

introduction of a new syllabus. The LA has indicated that it is prepared to underwrite the

changes being proposed.

Here is a summary of changes to the AS:

e Availability of more ‘lesson-ready’ resources

e Teaching units to embody more diversity

e Teaching units to reflect the local lived experience of people’s religious and non-
religious worldviews

e More input on Humanism required in primary phase

e More detail on assessment

e More input for special schools

e More input on progression in language and vocabulary across the syllabus

e Updated use of terminology and information on demographics

e More materials on how to link learning into local places of interest and places of worship

Launch events are planned for June 2024 with teachers being offered opportunities for
follow-up training.

Standards and monitoring in RE

Secondary schools

Data from the DfE annual workforce survey points to the fact that a number of local
secondary schools do not teach any/enough RE. Schools have been contacted and

Page 16



conversations with headteachers and senior leaders have taken place to explore further and
offer input to enable them to develop the place of RE in the curriculum.

GCSE exam results 2022

Appendix 1 shows entry data for Torbay schools for 2019-23 GCSE exams. This chart shows
that the percentage of Y11 cohort in Torbay schools who were entered for GCSE RS has
dropped by more than half in the last 5 years from 72% in 2017 to 48% in 2023. This fall
demonstrates a significant reduction and is mainly explained by a (national) trend that is
seeing schools moving away from entering their full Y11 cohort for the GCSE RS exam,
moving towards entry via more limited option groups. In some ways this is a positive shift,
where schools are more accurately targeting students who want to study RS as an exam
subject. However, it raises the question: what RE is being offered as part of the core
curriculum, for those students who do not opt for the GCSE option. This is something which
has been raised with a number of Torbay schools in conversation over the last year, to
explain the legal requirement for schools to offer 5% of curriculum time at KS3 and 4.

In terms of attainment, a number of Torbay schools are significantly below the national
average.

Primary schools

Monitoring of RE in primary schools continues through sampling of websites and scrutiny of
recent Ofsted reports. Schools have been contacted where issues arise or where RE does
not appear to be taught or delivered well. Visits have been made to schools where their
Ofsted report has highlighted weaknesses in RE or related areas. Where RE is mentioned
positively schools have been contacted to thank them for their strong provision.

Resources have been shared and advice has been given to a number of schools with regard
to parental requests for withdrawal from RE (and/or collective worship).

Monitoring RE in Multi-Academy Trusts

Torbay SACRE continues to monitor RE in schools which are in Multi-Academy Trusts (MATSs)
to ensure that RE is given its statutory place in the curriculum. There are an increasing
number of MATs who have appointed RE leads across their schools, which is a positive
development. SACRE, along with NATRE and RE Hubs, is active in drawing these hub leaders
together and working with them to develop an understanding of how MATs need to make
provision for the subject.

3 Collective Worship

Guidance from Torbay SACRE on collective worship and school assemblies has been well
received by schools. This guidance supports schools in developing an up-to-date policy and
encouraging active pupil participation in collective worship/assemblies. We want to help
schools put in place effective practice, offering opportunities for reflective experiences for
their pupils. The guidance document offers an explanation of the legal obligations, including
the right to withdrawal, and outlines some of the rich opportunities that assemblies/
collective worship can offer pupils for spiritual, moral, social, cultural and personal
development.

There have been no formal complaints about collective worship in schools and no
applications for determinations.

4 Links with other bodies
Torbay SACRE has strong links and partnerships with a number of organisations. It works
closely with Torbay Council, Devon County Council, the Diocese of Exeter and the

Page 17


https://www.torbay.gov.uk/schools-and-learning/school-improvement/sacre/sacre-guidance-on-collective-worship/

Universities of Exeter and St Mark and St John. The SACRE adviser coordinates the SW
AREIAC network of advisers (SWARE), and organises the annual SW SACRE conference. We
were pleased to invite Trevor Cooling (former Chair of the RE Council) to speak at the 2023
SW SACRE conference, with a number of other workshops offering a range of important
inputs for SACRE member training.

SACRE members and SACRE advisers across the SW often collaborate and share training and
initiatives. A number of SACRE members have accessed training from NASACRE and the
adviser attended the NASACRE national conference in May 2023 in London.

SACRE has discussed issues raised in recent NASACRE reports. The Still Standing report has
helped SACRE members consider how SACREs may need to evolve their membership to be
responsive to the representation of the diversity of local religion and worldviews
communities.

SACRE members continue to be fully informed about national developments being made by
the REC. In particular to understand how a new vision for RE is being developed through a
worldviews approach. SACRE is aware of the new national Religion and Worldviews resource
which has been produced to enable syllabus writers to construct a new generation of RE
syllabi. SACRE members are fully supportive of development of a National Content Standard
for RE.

SACRE works with the Torbay Faith and Belief Forum and Devon Faith and Belief Forum to
establish strong links to local faith and belief organisations. This enables schools to draw on
visitors to school classrooms and to inform who will be the most suitable faith and belief
representatives when member vacancies occur.

Learn, Teach, Lead RE

Torbay SACRE is pleased to continue its support of the Learn, Teach, Lead RE programme
(LTLRE). The Torbay and South Devon hub is working well to support teachers of RE, offering
termly twilight meetings and networking opportunities.

The recent evaluation of the programme has brought forward a number of
recommendations which are being put in place. This includes a better system for sending
out hub meeting dates in advance, and encouraging more recognition for the hub leaders’
roles from their leadership teams in their schools.

A teacher survey with regard to LTLRE showed that engagement with the local hub had
given teachers greater confidence in leading RE and Hub leaders were reported as
approachable and supportive.

The LTLRE conference in October 2022 took place online and attracted over 100 delegates.
Feedback was very positive, valuing the input from speakers and workshops. Delegates were
especially interested in the address from Dr Richard Kueh, Ofsted lead for RE.

5 SACRE: local involvement

The half termly RE newsletter gives schools in depth support, information and networking
links. It signposts current CPD, hub groups and conferences. Though it SACRE sign-posts
guidance to schools about significant events, eg religious festivals such as Easter, Ramadan
and Diwali, Interfaith Week etc

SACRE officers organise Holocaust Memorial Day events for schools every year in Exeter. On
Holocaust Memorial Day in January 2023 a service was held at Exeter Cathedral where
schools participated in remembrance and reflection. The key speaker, Rob Rinder (AKA
Judge Rob), attracted a large audience and much media attention. Over 200 school pupils

Page 18


https://www.areiac.org.uk/
https://nasacre.org.uk/
https://nasacre.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2022/06/Still-Standing-Appendix-6-Richmond-SACRE-action-research-project.pdf
https://www.religiouseducationcouncil.org.uk/
https://www.religiouseducationcouncil.org.uk/projects/draft-resource/
https://ltlre.org/

were involved in the Exeter events from eight schools across the County. Presentations
were given on Kindertransport and the Gypsy Holocaust. The closing ceremony was hosted
by the Jewish community.

HMD resources and links were shared with schools.

6 SACRE: regional and national involvement

Torbay SACRE has discussed the current shortage of secondary RE teachers and SACRE
members have expressed concern about the recruitment and retention crisis facing the
subject.

SACRE has been keen to be updated on the development of the RE Hubs initiative, which
provides teachers with a ‘one-stop-shop’ website, offering links to school speakers, places of
interest, CPD events, local network groups, blogs and resources etc.

7 SACRE organisation

Torbay SACRE has been well served through its clerk (Sue Kemp), LA lead (Debbie Horne)
and adviser (Ed Pawson). Torbay Council is responsive to SACRE’s needs and supportive in
its administration and organisation. SACRE is well supported financially.

SACRE membership is vibrant and well-engaged, with a number of new members joining
recently, which is a good sign. The new SACRE constitution, approved in Feb 2022, stipulates
that SACRE members will serve a 4 year period, followed by a further 4 year period, if
invited to continue. After this (8 years) most SACRE members will come off SACRE, to allow
others to join and gain the valuable experience of being on this body. This change will begin
to be enacted in 2024.

For some time SACRE has been aware of the need to continue to increase the diversity of its
representation. We were pleased to be able to listen to Dr Shungu M’Gadzan and Lorna
Legg who explained how SACREs can become more active in their practice of promoting
Diversity, Equity and Inclusion.

All meetings in the year 2021/2 have been quorate.

A number of SACRE members have taken advantage of useful training opportunities over
the last year, both through attendance at the SW SACRE conference and national online
NASACRE training events.

Torbay SACRE logo

Torbay SACRE is pleased to have adopted a new logo in 2022. This has been well received.

8 Appendices
Appendix 1

Percentage of KS4 Cohort Full Course Religious Studies GCSE Entries 2023

Page 19


https://devonfaiths.org.uk/resources/
https://www.re-hubs.uk/

2023 %NOE Torbay RE
(QAN 60188790)

2023 %NOE Torbay RE
(QAN 60184000)

1000 94 98.2
90:0 100.0 91.6
80.0
700 80.0
60.0 0.0
b
300 400 286
200
100 : 04 05 200 . I
0.0 — 0.0
Brixham  Churston  Paignton StCuthbert The Spires Torquay
College Ferrers  Academy  Mayne College Boys' Paignton Torquay Torquay Girls
Grammar School Grammar Academy Academy Grammar
resdermy e School
Appendix 2
Membership of Torbay SACRE August 2023
A Christian denominations and other Roman Catholic Helen Brown
Christian and other religions and religious denominations! | Pentecostal Carly Watson
Religions other than Quaker Bill Becher
Church of England Muslim Yousif Al-Nassar
lewish Sheila Gewolh
Pagan Maia Miller
Humanist Lisa Robillard Webb
Hindu
Buddhist
URC / Methodist / Baptist
B The Church of England Lyndsey Eley.
Angela Sumner
The Church of England Katy Burns
Charlotte Caluori
Such associations representing Teaching Unions Belinda Twiggs (NASUWT)
teachers as, in the opinion of the Corrine Guntrip.
authority, ought to be represented, Vacancy
c having regard to the circumstances of | NATFHE Nikki Boone
the area NATRE/LTLRE Laura Twamley,
Associations Higher Education Jonathan Doney
representing teachers SHA Jeremy Roberts
NAHT Vacancy
NATRE Claire Bird
Special school Vacancy
D The Local Authority Clir Nick Bye
The Local Education SIII: gl:;mouglasﬂunbar
Authority

Cllr Martin Brook

Coopted members

SACRE itself may appoint co-opted
members

Sivita Harrison, Kim Moore-
Cullen

Page 20




Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	5 Standards: GCSE data, schools monitoring and Ofsted reports (report)
	5 Ofsted reports Torbay schools Jan 2024

	6 Devon and Torbay agreed syllabus review (report)
	7 Learn Teach Lead RE: updates (report)
	9 Torbay SACRE Annual Report (report)

